
Third United Nations Conference on the Law of the Sea 
 

1973-1982 
Concluded at Montego Bay, Jamaica on 10 December 1982 

 
 

Document:- 
A/CONF.62/BUR/SR.26 

 
 

26th meeting of the General Committee 
 

Extract from the Official Records of the Third United Nations Conference on the Law of  
the Sea, Volume VI (Summary Records, Plenary, General Committee, First, Second and Third 

Committees, as well as Documents of the Conference, Fifth Session) 
 

 

 

 

 

Copyright © United Nations 
2009 



44 Fifth Session—General Committee

26th meeting
Monday, 13 September 1976, at 9.55 a.m.

Chairman: Mr. H. S. AMERASINGHE (Sri Lanka).

Organization of work

1. The CHAIRMAN invited the Chairmen of the Committees
to report on the work of their Committees.
2. Mr. AGUILAR (Venezuela), Chairman of the Second
Committee, said that the Second Committee would continue
to work through its three original negotiating groups as well
as two new negotiating groups which he had established:
negotiating group No. 4 dealing with straits used for interna-
tional navigation, and negotiating group No. 5 dealing with
the delimitation of the territorial sea, the exclusive economic
zone and the continental shelf between adjacent or opposite
States. In addition, informal meetings of the Committee
would be held to allow delegations to raise questions which
had not been discussed in the negotiating groups.
3. Negotiating group No. 1 had heard a report on the infor-
mal consultations on the legal status of the exclusive eco-
nomic zone. A number of participants had been in favour of
continuing those consultations and he therefore intended to
pursue them. There had been no further meetings of negotiat-
ing group No. 1 to discuss the question of the rights and duties
of other States in the exploitation of the living resources of
the exclusive economic zone.
4. With respect to negotiating group No. 2, two meetings of
the informal consultative group had taken place and part II,
chapter VI, of the revised single negotiating text had been
given a second reading. Negotiating group No. 2 would meet
at the end of the week to hear a progress report on those
consultations.
5. As for negotiating group No. 3, two meetings of the small
informal consultative group had been held and some progress
had been made towards a consensus.
6. Negotiating group No. 4 had held two meetings and
another was scheduled for the current week since the list of
speakers had not been exhausted.
7. Negotiating group No. 5 had held two meetings at which
participating delegations had examined the relevant articles of
part II of the revised single negotiating text. The group had
decided to establish a smaller group to carry out unofficial
consultations on the subject and he intended to convene a
meeting for informal consultations on delimitation that week.
8. Finally, the Second Committee had also wished to give
delegations an opportunity to raise other questions which had
not been discussed in the five negotiating groups, and two
meetings devoted to various subjects had been held during the
past week. Some of the questions raised had aroused only
limited interest and, since there would not be enough time at
the current session to create the necessary negotiating groups
to deal with them, he had asked those delegations which were
interested to meet informally to discuss them during the
remainder of the session and between sessions.
9. The Second Committee had been working very inten-
sively to produce a consensus and he recommended that every
effort be made to consolidate the results which had been
achieved in the negotiating groups. The Committee would
continue its work and he would prepare a final report to the
Conference before the end of the session.
10. Mr. ENGO (United Republic of Cameroon), Chairman
of the First Committee, congratulated the Co-Chairmen on
their fifth workshop report, which very clearly described the
scope and content of the informal discussions held during the
session, and showed the nature and extent of the disagreement

on the basic elements of the system of exploitation of the
international sea-bed area. He felt obliged to note, however,
that the workshop and its ad hoc negotiating group had also
spent a considerable amount of time on procedural and ide-
ological matters, for which the following reasons had been
suggested: the session was somewhat premature; the pro-
cedural method was too cumbersome and time-consuming;
there was a crisis of confidence and an unwillingness on all
sides to indicate clearly areas for possible concessions; it was
difficult for individual delegations to come to grips with large
and diversified groups and to carry on negotiations with no
true appreciation of what final positions might be; and discon-
tent with certain elements of the revised single negotiating
text had produced counter-proposals and counter-proposals to
those counter-proposals which inhibited the Committee's abil-
ity to focus on a cohesive line of argumentation.
11. Nevertheless, delegations held out great hope for success
at the next session. They had been asked to come prepared to
make the necessary political decisions and, if necessary, to
resort to the kind of mechanisms envisaged in rule 37 of the
Conference's rules of procedure. The Committee had been
asked, for example, to consider at the very outset of the next
session whether it would be conducive to negotiations to set
time-limits on discussions and even to establish a count-down
situation for the establishment of the broad agreements. The
Committee had been extremely faithful to the notion of con-
sensus and to its commitment to find durable solutions; the
introduction of some voting at a later stage was regarded as
compatible with that over-all commitment. The idea of a
special session of the First Committee in the intersessional
period had not been widely supported because delegations felt
that their problem was not so much a lack of time as the
absence of widespread recognition that the time had come for
hard and fast political decisions, and that there was therefore
a need to stimulate discussions by creating the necessary
incentives. The notion of time-limits had been viewed in that
context. Every effort would have to be made at the next
session to dispense as quickly as possible with the procedural
decisions and work towards the basic political accom-
modations.
12. In conclusion, he said he felt that the Committee had
begun to come to grips with the real problem and to confront
the hard political decisions which were central to all other
problems.
13. Mr. YANKOV (Bulgaria), Chairman of the Third Com-
mittee, said that the Third Committee had been working in
accordance with the procedure and programme of work agreed
to at its 28th meeting, held on 3 August. The revised single
negotiating text had been adopted as a basis for negotiations
and on many issues it had been regarded as a basis for
compromise. Significant efforts had been made by many
delegations to reduce existing differences and to harmonize
their positions on the items under consideration.
14. In the matter of the protection and preservation of the
marine environment, the main issue had been standard setting,
enforcement and safeguards with regard to vessel-source pol-
lution (articles 21 to 42). There had been two rounds of
discussions in informal meetings of the Committee as a
whole. The first had consisted of a discussion of concrete
proposals relating to substance and to drafting problems. The
second had concentrated on proposals submitted by delega-
tions and had been followed by meetings of smaller negotiat-
ing groups. There had been more than 30 meetings in all and



27th meeting—16 September 1976 45

they had produced a significant number of proposals, some of
which had been withdrawn and others combined in new
compromise provisions. Some issues and items were,
however, still outstanding. The negotiations were serious and
meaningful and had resulted in recognition of the fact that the
revised single negotiating text represented a balanced and
reliable basis for compromise. It had, moreover, been ob-
served that departure from it tended to produce disagreement
and to upset the existing equilibrium.
15. In the matter of marine scientific research, negotiations
had concentrated on key issues such as the system for the
conduct of such research and the question of consent, al-
though other related items had not been ruled out. In addition
to 13 informal meetings, there had been two meetings of the
special negotiating group at the level of heads of delegations
to discuss major developments. Over 40 proposals had been
submitted on marine scientific research. A new consolidated
text of article 57, based on various informal proposals, had
been accepted as a possible compromise pending agreement
on subsequent articles. It had been decided to defer discussion
of articles 58 and 59 until article 60 had been considered.
Article 60 constituted the focal point of negotiations regarding
the conduct of marine scientific research. More than 40 dele-
gations had made statements on the problem and 10 proposals
had been submitted, which had subsequently been reduced to
four. Since it had become apparent that the Committee was
moving in divergent directions rather than towards a compro-
mise, he had taken the initiative of submitting an informal text
aimed at reaching a compromise by taking into consideration
the various concerns of different interest groups. A significant
number of delegations had expressed the view that his infor-
mal proposal in respect to article 60 could provide a useful
basis for a compromise. Some delegations, however, had
rejected it even as a basis for negotiation.

16. In the course of the discussions, it had emerged that
many delegations held the view that the consent of ttfe coastal
States should constitute the fundamental principle of a system
for regulating the conduct of marine scientific research in the
economic zone and on the continental shelf, although some
States could not subscribe to that principle. There was general
agreement that marine scientific research should be promoted
and facilitated for the benefit of makind and that safeguards
should be provided for coastal States and States conducting
research. There was only limited room for manoeuvre,
however, and generally acceptable solutions had to be sought.
17. Only a preliminary exchange of views had taken place
on other articles, including articles 64 and 65, because of
insufficient time and because priority had been attached to
article 60.
18. With respect to the articles on the transfer of technology,
there had been two meetings of the Committee as a whole and
two meetings of the smaller negotiating group, at which
attention had been focused on articles 85 and 86. Many
proposals had been put forward but, although the negotiations
had been very useful, no decisions could be taken until the
results of the work of the First and Second Committees and of
the discussions on part IV of the revised single negotiating
text were known. Several more meetings might be required
before a full report could be issued.
19. In conclusion, he said he himself felt that a comprehen-
sive approach to the negotiating process, taking the conven-
tion as a whole into account, was essential and that a
consensus procedure was extremely advantageous in that
process.

The meeting rose at 10.35 a.m.


	Main Menu
	List of Documents
	How to use List of Documents

	Master File
	How to use Master File

	Other Materials
	I. Preface
	II. Document Symbols
	III. Full-text Search
	IV. Tables
	A. GA Resolutions
	B. Conference Sessions
	C. Documents by Session
	D. Contents by Volume
	E. Negotiating Texts
	F. Chronology - LOS



	Main: 


